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1. Name

For HCRS use only 

received r£8 1 2 1980 

date entered

historic ABBOT HOUSE

and/or common SPAULD1NG HOUSE

2. Location

street & number Q n e Abbot Square C.One Nashville Street)' not for publication

city, town Nashua vicinity of congressional district Second

state New Hampshire code 33 county Hillsborough code 011

3n Classification
Category Ownership

district public
_ X. building(s) _ X_ private 

structure both
site Public Acquisition
object in process

being considered

Status
_X_ occupied 

unoccupied
work in progress

Accessible
_X _ yes: restricted 

yes: unrestricted
no

Present Use
agriculture
commercial
educational
entertainment
government
industrial

military

museum

park
X private residence 

religious
scientific

transportation
other;

4. Owner of Property

name Nashua. Hi;stori;cgl Society

street & number 5 Abbot Street

city, town Nashua vicinity of state New Hampshire 03060

5. Location of Legal Description
Hillsborough County Registry of Deeds 

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Hi 11 sbprough County Courthouse_____

street & number 13 Temple Street_______________________

city, town Nashua state New Hampshire 03060

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title NA has this property been determined elegible? __ yes __ no

date federal __ state __ county __ local

depository for survey records

city, town state



7. Description

Condition
excellent

X good

fair

deteriorated
ruins
unexposed

Check one
_ unaltered 

A altered

Check one
X original site 

moved date

<

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Abbot House is a two-story framed structure consisting of a hipped-roof Federal 
building with a Greek Revival addition attached to its rear, or north, elevation. 
The east and west elevations of the original house are of brick masonry construction 
while the remainder of the house is clapboarded. Chimneys for first and second story 
fireplaces are integrated within these brick ends. The facade is five bays wide with 
the first story central bay framed by an Impressive portico supported by four fluted 
Roman Doric columns and surmounted by a balustrade. A similar balustrade is located 
on the roof. The front entrance consists of a six-paneled door with raised field 
paneling, sidelights with patterned tracery, fluted pilasters and a fanlight. Windows 
have six over six double hung sash, interior sitdtng shutters and exterior blinds. 
Window crowns consist of unusually wide frieze boards and projecting caps that on 
second story windows intersect the bed moulding of the cornice. Four windows are lo­ 
cated on each of the east and west elevations..

Attached to the north elevation is a two story, clapboarded, L-shaped addition with 
a low-pitched roof, that doubles the mass of the original house. Two chimneys rise 
from the ridge of the roof. A base cornice that forms a pediment and later casement 
windows are located on the west elevation. The east elevation of the ell is distin­ 
guished by a turned balustrade on the roof, and a two story porch that projects approx­ 
imately 10 feet beyond the wall. The porch is supported by four Roman Doric columns 
similar to those used on the portico.

Exterior changes introduced by Wi11 lam Spaulding, the 1905 owner of the Abbot House, 
exhibiting Colonial-Revival influences include the portico, the flattened semi- 
eliptical 1 ight and sidelights framing-'-the front entrance, the roof balustrade, the 
two story porch on the east elevation, the casement windows in the ell and the six 
over six double-hung sash windows throughout.

The floor plan of the original house consists of four principal rooms and a central 
hallway. The interior of the Abbot House retains most of its original Federal wood­ 
work but was further embel1ished with Colonial-Revival detailing. The central hallway 
exhibits the greatest changes. The original length of the hall was doubled by the 
removal of its north wall which was replaced by an arched opening. The flattened 
proportions of this archway repeat the dimensions of the fanlight over the front door. 
A quarter turn with landing staircase, originally located in the front portion of the 
hall, is now located on the northeast wal1. The balustrade having three round dowel 
balusters per tread gracefully terminates in a spiral, a characteristically Federal 
style staircase. The angle-posts are of a heavier form though and probably represent 
the remodelling which was done in the early twentieth centur. A fireplace built accord- 
Ing to the specifications of Count Rumford with a Federal mantelpiece is located on the 
north wall. The location of this fireplace approximates where a cooking fireplace 
would probably have been and Is inconsistent with most Federal buildings. Thus, it is 
probably that Mr. Spaulding diminished the original hearth and installed a Federal 
style mantelpiece to create this smaller, more formal fireplace, which would have 
been more in keeping with the hallway he designed. Other details in the hall that 
represent Colonial-Revival woodwork include the cornice with cymarecta, dentil, and 
rope moldings and the applied molding on the walls that forms an over-nantel panel
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Abbot House - continued

with crossetted corners and rectangular panels throughout. The metope and triglyph 
motif in the chair rail is characteristic of the Federal style. Providing access 
from the hallway to the two front rooms are widened doorways containing later doors. 
The casings and foliated cornerblocks suggest that these were probably remodelled in 
the mid-nineteenth century. The front parlor is located west of the hall and contains 
fine examples of Federal woodwork. The chimney-breast projects approximately one foot 
from the west wall. The mantelpiece consists of two reeded pilasters with full entabla­ 
ture supporting a delicate mantel shelf surmounted by another similar set of pilasters 
that extend to the room cornice. Horizontal sheathing forms the dado. The library 
is located east of the hallway. The library's east wall is distinguished by a project­ 
ing chimney-breast containing a mantelpiece consisting of two pilasters and full enta­ 
blature. The frieze utilizes the metope and triglyph motif also found in the cornices, 
window surrounds and chair-rails in the parlor and library. Later additions to the 
library's fireplace include blue and white tiles depicting Biblical scenes which face 
the jambs and the applied molding that forms an overmantel panel.

Bedrooms are located above the parlor and library. A small sitting room was formed 
in what was formerly the south end of the upstairs hall. Glazed doors separage this 
room from the remainder of the hall. A cornice with cyma recta, dentil and rope mold­ 
ings is seen in the sitting room and hall. Both bedrooms contain their original mantel­ 
pieces. The west bedroom mantelpiece consists of two flat pilasters with a simple 
mantelshelf. Horizontally sheathed dado, similar to that in the parlor, is also pre­ 
sent in this bedroom. The east bedroom mantelpiece consists of a surround bordered 
by a simple moulding and a friezeboard with curved ends that sweep inward to support 
the mantelshelf. The bedroom closets contain the only remaining Federal doors in the 
house, distinguished by six panels with raised fields and casings with molded back­ 
boards. Other doors throughout the house consist of four flat panels with the top 
panels elongated and applied moldings framing the panels in a manner typical in the 
Greek Revival period. Door casings are incised planks with pateras or foliated 
cornerblocks.

The ell of the Abbot House contains a modernized kitchen, dining rooms, bedrooms and 
storage rooms. Detailing is in a modest Greek Revival style, except in the dining 
room. This room was remodelled by William Spaulding in the early twentieth century 
in the Colonial Revival style. Typical of this period are the casement windows with 
diamond-shaped lights that were installed in the north wall and the two display cup­ 
boards with elaborate classical detailing built into the east wall. A later chimney 
within the south wall services a small fireplace in the dining room and one in the 
sitting room to the south.



8. Significance

Period Areas off Signifficance   Check and justify below
prehistoric archeoloav-orehistoric communitv olannina
14QO-1499

1500-1599

1600-1699
1700-1799

_X_ 1800-1 899
X 1900-

archeology-historic
agriculture

X architecture
art

commerce
communications

conservation
economics
education

engineering
exploration/settlement
industry -: r-
invention   '

landscape architecture
law
literature
military
music
philosophy
politics/government

religion
science

sculpture
social/
humanitarian 
theater
transportation
other (specify)

Specific dates lS04; 1905 Builder/Architect unknown

Statement off Signifficance (in one paragraph)

Architecture: The Abbot House survives: as one of the most significant examples 
of the Federal and Colonial Revival periods of architecture in Nashua and the 
surrounding area. Built In iSO^t as the prestigious home of Daniel Abbot, it was 
unusual In its clapboard and masonry construction. Federal influences throughout 
the Interior are exemplified in the four mantelpieces and metope and triglyph 
motifs found in cornices, chair-rails, and window casings. Prior to 18^2, an ell 
was added to the north elevation. This addition retained the dignity of the ori­ 
ginal house but was favorably influenced by the Greek Revival style. ,Interior 
doors in the older section were changed to remain consistent with the doors in 
the addition. During the residence of George W. Perham (.185^-1902) a Victorian 
tower was added to the central bay of the facade and the original windows were 
updated with two-over-one and two-over-two sash windows, in 1905, William Spaulding 
purchased the house and removed the tower. Spaulding and his son, Dexter Spaulding, 
a talented cabinet-maker, introduced a series of changes in the Colonial-Revival 
style throughout the first half of the twentieth century which created an abun­ 
dance of classical detailing. While the Abbot House exhibits equally fine exam­ 
ples of cabinetmaking from the Federal, Greek Revival and Colonial Revival pe­ 
riods of architecture, much of Its original character and,formality-remains.
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Verbal boundary description and justification

City of Nashua, Assessor's Office 
Sheet 67 Lot #58 -   :  

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code.

flU

name/title Norman E. Ha 11/Paul Newman*

organization
Nashua Historical Society 
Nashua City Planning Department^ date January 5, 1979
5 Abbott Street 

street & number City Hall, P.O. Box 805-
603 - 

telephone 603 - 880-3362

city or town Nashua state New Hampshire 03060

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

national X state local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the^National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89- 
665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the-Natfonal Register and certify that it has been evaluated 
according to the criteria and procedures set forth bvjHp-FHeritage Corrsefvatio^and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signaturgg=::;^e'>^^ _ ,____________

Commissioner Department of Resources &\Economic Development
title NH State Historic Preservation Officer ) date 10-22-79

date

dato

For HCRS UDC only
I hereby certify that this property is included in the-Nationai Register

Keeper of the National Register f

Attest:

GPO 938 835
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Blossom, Deborah, "Home of the Month." New Hariipsfitre Profiles, November, 1956 
Nashua City Planning Department, "Nashvi1le." Pamphlet. 1977. 
Nashua Telegraph. Various issues. Telegraph Publ[stung Co., Nashua.


